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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the Directors (the “Directors”) of Sino Splendid Holdings Limited # Bl # % I
$R1Z IR B PR B (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and no misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement in this annual report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this annual report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EEWRES

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (“Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the Group’s audited
financial results for the year ended 31 December 2015 to our
shareholders.

In 2015, we had continued to operate our travel media business
under “TTG” brand name. The operating environment in
the travel media business remained challenging. Our group
recorded a 3% drop in revenue from HK$81,573,000 in 2014
to HK$79,184,000 in 2015. It is attributable to the challenging
global economic environment results in more cautious approach
by companies in run-of-page (ROP) print advertising, more
advertising options on the internet and depressed business
sentiment.

Meanwhile, our group concentrate on careful costs management
and the strong performance for the Special Projects in 2015
offset the effect from depressing environment. As a result, the
group’s gross profit ratio has been slightly increased to from 52%
in 2014 to 54% in 2015.

In addition, investment income from our private equity fund has
increased due to more one off distribution in 2015 contributed to
the increase of the Group’s profit from continuing operation for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

In general, the market competition continued intensified with the
technology advancement. Travel media business is transforming
from the print advertising to online advertising. Recognizing
of such changes, the group continue focus on its B2B portal
“Roomonger” that launched in 2014. Our group will also look to
explore suitable business opportunities to broaden the revenue
base and to diversify the business scope of the group. With the
good reputation established over the past 40 years, we have the
confidence to maintain our leading market position under the
competitive business environment.
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DIRECTOR'’S STATEMENT

Moving forward, we believe the economic conditions are expect
to improve, and travel industry for both business and leisure will
be benefit from the fast growing visitor environment in the Asia-
Pacific region which TTG will present a better performance in
2016. We will exercise due caution to monitor the development
of travel market and embrace the challenges with careful costs
management on overheads.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
extend my heartfelt gratitude to our management and staff for
their steadfast dedication amidst the adverse and challenging
environment. Meanwhile, | would also like to deliver my sincere
thanks to our stakeholders and business partners for their support
and trust over the years.

Mr. Chow Chi Wa
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Year ended 31 December
BE+=-B=+—BHLEFE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HE —EBE--NME —T-=F T —TB——%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue (note 1) B (K1)
Continuing operation FHBIRE TS 79,184 81,573 93,326 91,521 89,755
Discontinued operation BARIEER - - 52,950 50,715 37,355
79,184 81,573 146,276 142,236 127,110
Profit (loss) for the year TI AL REIEARF
attributable to: EaF (EE) -
Owners of the Company PINNESIES PN 11,213 3,322 102,556 20,411 6,910
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E1Z I ## z5 (15) (37) 8 352 1,051
11,198 3,285 102,564 20,763 7,961

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - BERFERESR

INTERESTS

At 31 December

W+=—A=+-—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —ZET—WNF ZET—=F —ZT—=-F ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT FETT FET
Assets BE 296,880 270,161 466,895 394,345 366,326
Liabilities A& (35,457) (16,155) (19,214) (52,299) (51,069)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE4TAX#E 25 (2,029) (2,044) (2,081) (2,073) (1,721)
259,394 251,962 445,600 339,973 313,536
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA

TEMBEN

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

LIG‘S

M EE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-EF —T—WNMFE ZT—=F ZT—=—F ZZT—F
HKS$ cents HK$ cents HK$ cents HK$ cents HK$ cents
B JEA JBEA B JEA
Earnings per share BB AT
— basic and diluted —EARR#E
(note 2) (Hi5t2) 0.17 0.05 1.77 0.35 0.12
Net assets per share BREESE
— basic and diluted —EARR#E
(note 2 and 3) (Hat2/%3) 0.05 3.95 7.70 5.87 5.42
Notes:— Bia -

1.  Revenue has been re-presented, the internet portal business 1.
has been disposed during 2013, and presented as discontinued

operation.

2. Earnings per share and net assets per share have been adjusted for 2.
the Company’s bonus issue of shares in October 2015 and January
2014, details of which are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

3. Net assets represent total assets less total liabilities and 3.

non-controlling interests.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEERSNEEEKE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER & COMPANY SECRETARY

Chow Chi Wa

Mr. Chow, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director
in March 2013; as Company Secretary in August 2013 and as
Chief Executive Officer in November 2013 of the Company. He
holds a Master Degree in Corporate Governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He has been a Non-executive Director
of Sinoref Holdings Limited (HKEX: 1020) since November 2013.
Mr. Chow is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He
possesses extensive experience in finance and accounting.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wang Tao

Mr. Wang, aged 58, was graduated from the Hebei University
with a bachelor’s degree of Engineering in 1982. He has
accumulated more than 20 years of experience in investment
and construction management. Mr. Wang was the deputy general
managers of a private real estate development company located
in Beijing since 2004. Mr. Wang was appointed as an Executive
Director on 29 September 2015.

Xiao Hua

Mr. Xiao, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director in
May 2013. He is the Chief Financial Officer of Shenzhen Anxuan
Investment Group Co., Limited CRIITT ZEH IR EEBBR A A)
since May 2010. Prior to this, from January 2003 to May 2010,
he was served as the Chief Financial Officer in Shenzhen Anxin
Digital Development Co., Limited ORYITHZEEFEREGR LD
A]), and therefore has solid finance and accounting experience.
Mr. Xiao has college degree and is a Certified Public Accountant
in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Xiao resigned as an
Executive Director on 1 January 2016.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND §EN IOR M_ANAGEME[\JT
EEENSNEEERE

Yang Xingan

Mr. Yang, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director
in January 2015. He graduated from the Wuhan University
of Science and Technology, majoring in industrial and civil
architecture. He is a registered constructor in the People’s
Republic of China, a senior engineer and a member of the
Architectural Society of China. Mr. Yang has over 20 vyears
of management experience in construction and real estate
development. He joined Hubei State-owned Huanggai Hu
Property Development Company (j#1b& Bl & &= &\ 25 &
F# T2 A A]) as a technician in July 1993 and was holding the
position as a general manager by the time he left in February
2001. Between March 2001 and July 2005, Mr. Yang was the
project manager of Archibal Decoration Co., Ltd. (FYI T 5T F 5
gk st TI2 B MR A R)) . From August 2005 to February 2009, He
joined Shenzhen Yingfeng Decoration Engineering Co., Limited
ORYIm B EEH TR AR 2 A]) as a partner. Since March 2009,
Mr. Yang has been the Legal Representative and Chairman of
Jiangsu Anxin Digital Property Co., Limited ((T#& & Z 58T E %
BRAA) .

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Xu Yun

Ms. Xu, aged 54, was appointed as a Non-executive Director in
March 2013. She graduated from Medical College of Nanchang
University (formerly known as Jiangxi Medical College). In her
early years, she was engaged in the administration work in
an export trading company. From 1996 to 2005, she held key
managerial positions in a number of real estate development
and sales companies. She joined Bonus Sky Group in 2005 as
Vice President, responsible for the management of real estate
development, sales and financial investment. She began her
career in the finance and investment industry in 2008 and
invested in enterprises engaging in the real estate development
and software development businesses. Ms. Xu possesses
extensive experience in capital investment, risk management and
corporate management. Ms. Xu resigned as an Non-Executive
Director on 21 December 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEENSREEREKE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yang Shuyan

Ms. Yang, aged 35, is a certified public accountant in the
People’s Republic of China. She graduated from the South
China University of Technology with a dual bachelor’s degree
in E-commerce and Technical English. She has served as
the financial controller of Anxin-China Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1149))
since 2011. Prior to joining such company, she had worked
in an internationally renowned accounting firm and has over
eight years of experience in auditing and finance. Ms. Yang was
appointed as an Non-Executive Director on 29 May 2015.

Zhu Xiangrong

Mr. Zhu, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent
Nonexecutive Director in May 2013. Since 1998 onwards, he
has respectively served as the General Manager of Shenzhen
Siu Che Industrial Co., Limited CRUITHKEKEEBR N A]),
the Director and Vice President of Beijing Zhong Min Gas Co,.
Limited, the Executive Director of Wuxi Hai Yuan Industrial
Co., Limited (38R E TR AR A7) and the Executive
Director and President of Y| Rong International Investments
(Holding) Co., Limited (—&BIER&E (ZR) A F]) .
this, he served in the Shenzhen Branch of the People’s Bank of
China and Shenzhen Foreign Exchange Administration Bureau
for several years, and has rich experience in the area of finance
and investment. Mr. Zhu graduated at Faculty of Management
of Shenzhen University, with a Bachelor Degree of Economic
Management. Mr. Zhu resigned as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 1 January 2016.

Prior to

Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang

Mr. Zhang, aged 60, is a Certified Planner in the People’s
Republic of China. He studied in the Northwest University ( 3t
K2 ) with a major in Chinese. He currently serves as the general
manager of FIITRIETT 5 R AR 2 7 (Shenzhen Tian Heng
Marketing Consultancy Company Limited*). He is responsible
for corporate strategic planning, marketing, investment and
management in real estate projects. Prior to that, Mr. Zhang has
accumulated more than 25 years of experience in corporate
strategic planning, marketing and consultancy services from
various corporations. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an Non-
Executive Director on 29 May 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND §EN IOR M_ANAGEME[\JT
EEENSNEEERE

Peng Jiang

Ms. Peng, aged 36, was appointed as an Independent
Nonexecutive Director in May 2013. She is currently the Chief
Financial Officer of Shenzhen Anxin Digital Development Co.,
Limited ORI T LS FERBRAF]) . Prior to this, she had
worked in an internationally renowned accounting firm and
has over nine years of experience in auditing and finance. Ms.
Peng graduated from University of Manchester, United Kingdom
with a Master Degree in Finance and Economic. She is a
Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. Ms. Peng resigned as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 29 May 2015.

Wu Guilong

Mr. Wu, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Nonexecutive Director in May 2013. He established the Anhui
Daming Industries (Group) Co., Ltd. (ZHERELEE (£8)F
[R 2 7]) in June 1994 and has been the Chairman and President
of the company since then. Under his leadership, the company
has created good economic performance and social benefits
which were well recognized by Provincial and Municipal
governmental leaders and amongst industry peers and received
a number of awards. Mr. Wu has postgraduate qualification and
holds a Master Degree. He is also a senior economist. Mr. Wu
resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 29 May
2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER

Ho Yuk Hay

Mr. Ho, aged 36, joined the Company in April 2010 as Financial
Controller and subsequently appointed as Chief Financial Officer
in September 2012. Mr. Ho has extensive financial management
experience and over nine years of experience in one of the big
4 accounting firm. He has been an Executive Director of Sinoref
Holdings Limited (HKEX: 1020) between October 2013 and
October 2014. Mr. Ho graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
Accountancy in 2001 and further obtained a master’s degree in
Corporate Governance in 2012 at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Ho resigned as
Chief financial Officer on 17 October 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESENSREEREKE

Darren Ng

Mr. Ng, aged 60, is the Managing Director of TTG Asia Media.
He is a veteran in the travel and tourism industry and has a
wealth of experience of more than 30 years in the business.
Having joined the company (formerly known as Asian Business
Press and Miller Freeman Pte Ltd) since 1984, he is credited with
successfully growing TTG Asia Media regionally. Under Darren’s
leadership, TTG Asia Media achieved consistent organic growth,
establishing profitable portfolios in event management, tourism
and travel trade publishing. His accomplishments also include
expanding TTG Asia Media’s geographic presence across Asia.

Mr. Ng has also been at the helm of a multitude of incumbent
committees and associations in the travel and tourism industry
as council and advisory member. He is the current Chairman of
PATA Singapore Chapter (since 2008) and is presently an Industry
Council Member of Pacific Asia Travel Association, the Appointed
Conference Ambassador to Shanghai City (from 2009 to 2014)
and previously a Member of the Asia Pacific Advisory Council to
Meeting Professionals International (MPI). He also served as the
President of Skdl International Singapore from 2001 to 2003.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$79,184,000 representing an approximately
HK$2,389,000 or 3% decrease compared to approximately
HK$81,573,000 in 2014. The net decrease was primarily
attributable to most organisations adopted a more cautious
approach to advertising and promotion under current challenging
global economic environment.

The effect of such shortfall had been offset by the strong
performance for the Special Projects and careful costs
management on overheads.

Gross profit margin rose slightly to approximately 54% in 2015
(2014: 52%).

Other income, gains and losses

Other income, gains and losses increased by 64% to
approximately HK$22,274,000 in 2015, compared to
approximately HK$13,558,000 in 2014. The increase
was primarily due to an increase in investment income to
approximately HK$29,293,000 from our private equity funds
investments as certain one-off distribution occurs in 2015.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 19% to
approximately HK$15,065,000 in 2015, compared to
approximately HK$18,553,000 in 2014. The decrease is mainly
due to careful costs management on overheads during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE W&

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 11% to approximately
HK$36,979,000 in 2015, compared to approximately
HK$33,166,000 in 2014. The increase was primarily attributable
to (1) increase in promotion fee to HK$8,000,000; (2) decrease
in legal and professional fee amounting to approximately
HK$1,814,000 from approximately HK$4,040,000 in 2014.

Income tax

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately
HK$1,682,000 in 2015, compared to approximately
HK$874,000 in 2014.

Non-controlling interests

Loss shared by non-controlling interests was approximately
HK$15,000 in 2015, compared to a loss of approximately
HK$37,000 in 2014. Loss shared by non-controlling interests
represented non-controlling interests” share of loss in a company
that is partly owned by a third party. The Group’s equity interest
in this company is 90% as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 90%).

Profit for the period attributable to owners of the
Company

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$11,213,000 in 2015, compared to
approximately HK$3,322,000 in 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally financed its operations with its
internally generated cash flows. The Group’s total equity was
approximately HK$261,423,000 as at 31 December 2015 after
the distribution of a bonus issue of totaling approximately
HK$2,974,000 instead of special dividend from retained profit,
compared to approximately HK$192,912,000 special dividend as
at 31 December 2014. Total assets amounted to approximately
HK$296,880,000 as at 31 December 2015, compared to
approximately HK$270,161,000 as at 31 December 2014, of
which approximately HK$136,864,000 (2014: HK$187,522,000)
was bank balances and cash and approximately HK$49,149,000
(2014: HK$60,253,000) was available-for-sale investments.

Capital structure

On 17 August 2015, the Board proposed a bonus issue of new
shares (“Bonus Shares”) on the basis of nine bonus shares for
every one share held by the existing shareholders. The Bonus
Shares rank pari passu in all respect with the shares then in
issue. On 6 October 2015, the bonus issue was completed.
The issued share capital of the Company was therefore
increased by 5,787,376,614 shares from 643,041,846 shares
to 6,430,418,460 shares and approximately of HK$57,873,766
was credited to share capital with the amount of approximately
HK$33,979,000 and approximately HK$23,895,000 was debited
to the share premium account and capital reserve account
respectively.

Charges on the Group's assets

There was no charge on the Group’s assets as at 31 December
2015 and 2014.

Gearing ratio
The Group has a zero gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 as calculated by net debts divided by shareholders” equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE W&

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and any
related hedges

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Renminbi, Singapore dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group had not entered into
any hedging arrangements. However the management will
continue to monitor closely its foreign currency exposure
and requirements and to arrange for hedging facilities when
necessary.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liability as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

Material acquisitions, disposals and significant
investments

Save as the subscription of private equity fund investment of
JPY220,651,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,048,000)
and US$4,757,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$37,101,000). The Group’s Listed shares investment is
approximately HK$87,812,000 as at the year ended 31
December 2015.

Employee information

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 58 (2014: 63) full-time
employees, of which 12 (2014: 12) were based in Hong Kong, 2
(2014: 3) in China, 43 (2014: 47) in Singapore, and 1 (2014: 1)
in Malaysia. The Group has introduced share option schemes to
recognise the contributions of the employees to the growth of the
Group. The schemes have been or will be amended from time to
time to take into account changes in market conditions and the
GEM Listing Rules.

16 Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
TEERRBERARAF

EXREEERETEEYHED

AEBALDEERBBANEBER S TS
AANRE T - BT RETEE- R
(E_E-—RFT_A=1+—HILFEH
B ANEEIWEETERABLE PER R
- EBEREREEENERINERRRE
KWRERERLBEEPER-

HREME
RZF-AFRZFT-—NF+ZA=+—
A AKRETERERNLREE-

EARB HEREARE

SREEFLEE S E220,651,0008 B (48
& 7 #712,048,0007% 7T) K&4,757,0003 T
(FER#H37,101,0008 )0 HE-F
—HEF+-_A=+—BIFE AEEZ
FHRHIEE A487,812,000/8 7T ©

EE&EH
RZE—RAF+_A=+—"H KA£EEHE
F58% (ZZE—MNF:63%)2RES H
FRE(ZE—NOF:1NRZ)REBTIE:
2Z(ZZE—MF 3% )RFEITE 434
ZENF A7R)RF N TIER1A
(ZE—OF 1B)RNERATIE-AE
EEHHBRETEZ URBEBHASE
EERMAEHZER EEEE & B
SHEREMIHHEAE KA ZER ETRAM
TEELIERT o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

During 2015, the Asia-Pacific region faced a challenging global
economic environment, travel and tourism sectors across Asia
and the Pacific region fared well with some markets doing better
than others. The Asia-Pacific region continued to attract the
second largest number of inbound visitors after Europe and it
is one of the fastest growing region in the world. The improved
air links have helped to increase passenger flow and this in turn
has led to Intra-regional tourism making up about 80% of the
inbound tourism to the region.

Although there was growth in arrivals across all destinations in
Asia-Pacific, a high percentage of tourism flow was concentrated
to number of destinations such as China, Hong Kong and Macau
and ASEAN countries such as Singapore, Thailand and Malaysia
with the rest of the destinations in the region sharing a smaller
percentage of the inbound arrival.

Moreover, the increased inbound tourism numbers unfortunately
did not translate into increase in advertising and promotion spent
as most organizations adopted a more cautious approach to
current business sentiments resulting in no revenue growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE W&

BUSINESS REVIEW

As a result of the challenging global economic environment and
cautious approach of companies, we saw a dip in the overall
run-of-page (ROP) print advertising revenue from our main
source markets partly due to the migration to online advertising
channels, more advertising options on the internet and depressed
business sentiment.

The Main sources of revenue for the Group were from traditional
matured markets or destinations that enjoyed higher percentage
of inbound such as North Asia and South-East Asia or ASEAN
region. Notwithstanding the above, careful costs management on
overheads and the strong performance for the Special Projects
continued to help significantly in cushioning the decline in
revenue. These measures provided key contribution for the
Group to achieve and exceed the budgeted bottom line. The
special projects undertaken by the Travel Trade Publishing group
in 2015 include the TTG Show Daily at major events such as ATF
(ASEAN Tourism Forum), ITB Berlin, PATA Travel Mart, CITIM
(China International Travel Mart), and various supplements and
special publications.

During 2015, the Group worked with various industry and
sponsorship partners. One such significant partnership is the
the privilege of being appointed as Media Sponsor for a major
sporting event — the 28th SEA Games 2015 held in Singapore.
Under the sponsorship, a special SEA Games edition of
Singapore Official Guides & Maps was published by the group.

In order to maintain our performance in this challenging global
economic environment, unlike previous years where the Group
took a more aggressive approach in launching new products
and services, 2015 was a year of consolidation with limited
investment on our B2B portal and prudent cost management.
These have also contributed to the overall increased bottom line
profitability of the group in 2015. Going forward, the Group will
look to explore suitable business opportunities to broaden the
revenue base and to diversify the business scope of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group are principally engaged in advertising services through
the internet and travel magazines, event organising services and
magazine publication.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015, and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 104.

Details of dividends for the year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, are summarized on page 6 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefore,
are set out in notes 21 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman
Island which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$102,214,000.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Total donations made by the Group for charitable and other
purpose during the year amounted to HK$152,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 9% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 2%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 28% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 14%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Chow Chi Wa (Chief executive officer)

Wang Tao (appointed on 29 September 2015)
Xiao Hua (resigned on 1 January 2016)

Yang Xingan

Non-executive Director
Xu Yun (resigned on 21 December 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors
Yang Shuyan

(appointed on 29 May 2015)
Zhang Xiaoguang

(appointed on 29 May 2015)
Peng Jiang (resigned on 29 May 2015)
Wu Guilong (resigned on 29 May 2015)
Zhu Xiangrong (resigned on 1 January 2016)

In accordance with Article 84(3) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chow Chi Wa shall retire at the Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 85 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wang Tao, Ms Yang Shuyan and Mr. Zhang
Xiaoguang will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and will then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Emoluments of the Directors, chief executive and the
five highest paid individuals

Details of the Directors” emoluments and of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company’s Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
each of the Directors, chief executives and their associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interest or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required
to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the securities transactions by
the directors, were as follows:

The Company
Long positions in ordinary shares and the underlying
shares of equity derivatives

Name of Directors/

chief executive Number of shares

EE BRETHRAEHR BHEE HEROGEE
Zhu Xiangrong 14,640,000

K mEEE

Note:

(1) These shares were beneficially owned by Praise Million Limited, a
company 100% owned by Mr. Zhu Xiangrong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
31 December 2013 which will expire on 31 December 2023.
The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to directors, eligible employees and other person(s)
who may make a contribution to the Group. Under the 2013
Share Option Scheme, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)”) of the Company may grant options to eligible
person(s), including employees, directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, consultant, adviser, agent, contractor, customer and
supplier of any member of the Group whom the Board in its sole
discretion considers eligible for the 2013 Share Option Scheme
on the basis of his/ her contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which can be granted under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme must not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval of such
scheme. The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive Directors in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 7 days from the date
of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors. There is no general
requirement on the minimum period for which option must be
held before an option can be exercised. All option shares must
be exercised within 10 years from the date of grant of options.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

No share option has been granted under 2013 Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2015.
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Options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, chief executive
and their associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, so far as it known by or other notified
to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
particulars of the corporate or persons (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) which had 5% or more
interests and short positions in the shares and the underlying
shares as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO were as follow:

Name

=L

QiYi Holdings Limited (Note 1)
RMEERBR AR (M)

Mr. Chen Ying Zhen (Note 1)

BRAZREE (HatT)
L - Long Position
Note:

(1)  Mr. Chen Ying Zhen is a substantial shareholder, director and the
ultimate beneficial owner of QiYi Holdings Limited.
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Number of shares

R4 #E

1,818,862,520 (L)

1,818,862,520 (L)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who has an interest of short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board is not
aware of any Director or the management shareholder of the
Company (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) having any
interests in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year are set out in notes 9 and 29
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has not
adopted a code of conduct regarding the Directors’ securities
transactions but has applied the principles of the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (“Required Standard of Dealings”). Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company, the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with or they were not aware
of any non-compliance with the Required Standard of Dealings
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued
shares were held by the public) as required by Rule 17.38A of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.

ESEHRE

BREXFIBEBEEN RZZE—HF+=H
=t+—H ARRWEETMAL (ESH
ARARREITHRABRIN MERARFZ
BHXBERTFHEERIBEES KB EEDH
BEXVHBE2RFIDBREZERZI AR
HER AR BRIBEES R EEFIE3360K
GEZERMZERIAR-

BE HESBEAQATZLTHE
%
REEZE-ZT—RF+-_A=+—"BILFE"
RARREEMHBARTEBE - HE
KIERIAQNA Z AR EHES-

BF R
RBEE—Z—AF+-A=+—BLFE
BEQY TATENEERARAERE
BRI (2 S AIEIR £ R BY) R A
EEEBHARTREARE 2 EHE
AR -

Ry N
AEEZERAERAFRERFEEE
W R MG 2 BERKRAZFE D HIE
RER B M BRI IR 29 ©

EEEHERES
RBE-_T-AFt_A=T—HULFE"
ARAYTEREFTEEESF XD HRNET
SR R B A AR BT AR A F5.481%
EFSCTRMBARERR L TIREEZ
RAN([RZHBTIRE]) - AR RA] 28
EXZTRR EFCHED RERBE_ZT
—EF+ A=+ —RIEFE-—HETH
W AAMBEALEBETIZ N TIREZR
o

RAXNRERE
REARTARGNAHEN RIEEEM
M RAFEEEARERS ARE—H
435 B AR BT AR R SE17 38AIRPT AL E )
RADBEBRE (ED25%MEHTREH
MARALEA) -

Annual Report 2015 25

—E-REEH



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no transactions
with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware any transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the GEM listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statement.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing rule. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE COMPLIANCE

Save as disclosed below, the Company throughout the year 2015
has fully complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange.

In respect A.6.7 of the CG Code provision, the executive
Director, Mr. Yang Xingan was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company due to his other business
commitment.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited was auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2014 and resigned as auditor of the Company
on 7 January 2016. Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”)
was appointed as auditor of the Company on 7 January 2016
and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 was audited by Elite Partners. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
FEERFRIZERERAA

Mr. Chow Chi Wa

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. Save as disclosed below, the Company
throughout the year 2015 has fully complied with the applicable
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
code”) and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix
15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprises Market (the “GEM Listing Rule”) of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In respect A.6.7 of the CG Code provision, the executive
Director, Mr. Yang Xingan was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company due to his other business
commitment.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value. The Board have two
Independent Non-executive Directors only since Tst January
2016, as such the number of which falls below: (1) the minimum
number of three independent non-executive directors pursuant
to Rule 5.05(1) and (2) one third of the board as required under
rule 5.05A of Rules (the “GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is in the course of identifying suitable candidates
for the appointment as Independent non-executive director and
as member of the Audit committee of the Company in order
to meet the minimum number of audit committee members
required under the GEM Listing Rules as soon as practicable
and in any event within 3 months from 1st January 2016.
The candidate will also fill the vacancy as the member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Further announcement will be made by the Company
upon fulfillment of the aforesaid requirements.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not exceeding,
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. A retiring Director shall retain office until the
close of the meeting at which he retires, and shall be eligible
for re-election thereat. All non-executive Directors are subject
to rotational retirement and re-election in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

Board responsibilities and Delegation

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines on matters that
requires its approval to achieve a clear division of the
responsibilities of the Board and the management. Matters
requiring the Board’s approval include, among others, review of
overall policies and objectives for corporate contributions and
approval of corporate plan of the Company and any significant
changes thereto, investment plans which would involve
significant commitments of financial, technological or human
resources, or would involve significant risks for the Company,
significant sales, transfers, or other dispositions of property or
assets, significant changes in policies of broad application, major
organization changes, approval of the annual report, and review
of semi-annual and quarterly financial and operating results,
other matters relating to the Company’s business which in the
judgment of the chief executive officer are of such significance
as to merit the Board’s consideration, and adoption of such
policies and the taking of such other actions as the Board deems
to be in the best interests of the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance in respect of legal action against Directors.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

The positions of the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain an effective segregation of duties with respect to the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the
Group's business.
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The chairperson shall ensure that the Board works effectively
and discharges its responsibilities, ensure that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established, encourage
all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs and taking the lead to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Company and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner,
all Directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The chairperson has delegated
the responsibility of drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting to the company secretary. The chief executive officer is
responsible for strategic planning and implementation, sourcing
and meeting with potential business partners and looking for
business opportunities for the Group, client development,
recruiting, staff development, collaboration across the affiliated
company network and looking for opportunities to cross-fertilise
best practices and reporting to the Board regarding the Group’s
overall progress.

The board’s chairlady, Ms. Xu Yun resigned on 21 December
2015. The group is still seeking replacement for the position.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board conducts regularly scheduled meetings on a quarterly
basis. Ad-hoc meetings are convened when circumstances
require. The Board held 8 meetings during the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 to consider, among other things,
reviewing and approving the quarterly, interim, annual results
and payments of dividends of the Group. The Directors attend
meetings in person or via telephone conference, as permitted
under the articles of association of the Company.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in

2015 is set out below:

Directors

BE=x

Executive Directors

Chow Chi Wa

Wang Tao (appointed on 29 September 2015)
Xiao Hua (resigned on 1 January 2016)

Yang Xingan

Non-executive Directors

Xu Yun (chairlady of the Board)
(resigned on 21 December 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Yang Shuyan (appointed on 29 May 2015)
Zhang Xiaoguang (appointed on 29 May 2015)
Peng Jiang (resigned on 29 May 2015)

Wu Guilong (resigned on 29 May 2015)

Zhu Xiangrong (resigned 1 January 2016)

The company secretary attends the Board/Board committees
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HERE SFRE
HITES
A 8/8
TR (R=ZZF—ABFNA=—FNHAEZE) 11
HE(RZFE—ANFE—HA—HFF) 7/8
1 Bl% 7/8
FHITES
BB (EFLE)
(R=ZF—AFES=ZHA=+—HEF) 6/8
BIUFHTES
BREBE(R=ZF—AFAA=-FLABEZE) 5/5
RENX (R—F—AFAA-FNHEZT) 4/5
I (R=ZFE—AFAAZ1T/HFT) 2/3
RER (R=ZF—aAFAA=F+NHEFHE) 2/3
KAE (RZF—NFE—H—HFF) 6/8

NEMEHREAESSE E5ZE88g

meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary i##° 2 EEZHABMBARME -RAIME

who is responsible for ensuring that Board/Board committees
procedures are observed and advising the Board/Board

committees on compliance matters.

All Directors were given the opportunities to include matters to
be discussed in the agenda of Board/Board committees meetings.
The company secretary is delegated with the responsibility to

EMREES EFEZECCRTES
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prepare these agendas and, where appropriate, take into account
any matters proposed by each Director/committee member for
inclusion in the agenda. The company secretary shall prepare
minutes and keep records of matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board meetings.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the vyear,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition,
all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution into the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the year, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development (“CPD”) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills by reading materials and/or attending
briefings by company secretary and chief financial officer
or seminars organized by professional bodies on corporate
governance or updated on laws, rules and regulations relating to
the roles, functions and duties of a Director.

The individual record of each Director who received training for
the year is summarized as follow:

EEZRERIIRER
EERIIBRERE - A EFERAXR
REIRBE -RARFEHEREHER - A
BEEZSERESEZTARITHEBL It
SV RRRBEMEESE2ERBBEEEHR
& AR E AT E A MR EE - MR E
EEBEEEARIGMB BN THE
E- Ry

RAFE 2REFC2EFEZXER
((FESXER]) ERMNERAMLEE
AR AREFAG BELAETREE AR
AIROER BN EROM B RS ERE
WEMMBRENEN S LEXEEBRMN
HO B EE - AR B BT 1R S M AN A S BB o

WA B I 05 8 B EA R SR
o

Type of continuous
professional

Directors development programs

= FEEXBREEER

Executive Directors BITES

Chow Chi Wa BAEE A, B

Wang Tao (appointed on 29 September 2015) ITRR-ZFE-—AFAAZTNAEZE) A, B

Xiao Hua (resigned on 1 January 2016) HE (RZE—NF— H—HEIF) A, B

Yang Xingan 15 % A B

Non-executive Director FHUTES

Xu Yun (Chairlady of the Board) ®wH(EFeEE) A, B
(resigned on 21 December 2015) (R =—F—FF+ = H=—+—HEHT)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Yang Shuyan (appointed on 29 May 2015) BRE(RZFE-—AFAA-THNAEZT) A, B

Zhang Xiaoguang (appointed on 29 May 2015)  FR&EX (R=_F—aAFAA =+ ILHEZE) A, B

Peng Jiang (resigned on 29 May 2015) L (RZFE—AFAAZTNHEFE) A, B

Wu Guilong (resigned on 29 May 2015) REE(RZFE—AFAHAZFNLAFE) A, B

Zhu Xiangrong (resigned 1 January 2016) KA (R ZF—NF—H—HEFIT) A, B

32 Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

TEERKBERERQAA



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Notes:
A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: reading newspapers, books, articles, journals and updates relating
to economy, general business, travel, finance, investment, legal and
regulatory, corporate governance and management or director’s
duties and responsibilities etc.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members. It endeavors to ensure that the Board had
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has appointed a number of committee to discharge
the Board functions. Sufficient resources are provided to enable
the Board committees to undertake their specific roles. The
respective role, responsibilities and activities of each Board
committee are set out below:

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee that
management (i) has maintained the reliability and integrity of
the accounting policies and financial reporting and disclosure
practices of the Company; (ii) has established and maintained
processes to assure that an adequate system of internal control
is functioning within the Company; and (iii) has established and
maintained processes to assure compliance by the Company
with all applicable laws, regulations and corporate policy. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website.
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From 1 January 2015 to 29 May 2015, the Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors and chaired by
Ms. Peng Jiang. Other members of the committee are Mr. Wu
Guilong and Mr. Zhu Xiangrong. From 29 May 2015 to 31
December 2015, the Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors and chaired by Ms. Yang Shuyan. Other
members of the committee are Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang and Mr.
Zhu Xiangrong. The composition of the audit committee during
the year as well as the meeting attendance of the committee
members are as follows:

BE-E—hF—A—HZEZE-_ZT—HFHA
—t+NB ZECHZRBUIIERTESAE
B EERE IR - ZES 7 HMKER
RERLEREANEEE - BT —AF
RA-t+hBEZZE—RE+-_A=+—
H ZESH=-RBUIIENTESHERK =
BEGRBEZLT -ZTESEMKE AR
BEXEERKAELE- REFRNEZELZE
gvKEBHEKNEREZEEEKECLRESHE
AT

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings
= HERE EERH
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Yang Shuyan (appointed on 29 May 2015) BREA(R-F—AFAA T NAEZE) 4/4
Zhang Xiaoguang (appointed on 29 May 2015)  KEEX (R-ZZF—aAFAHA -+ ILHEZF) 4/4
Peng Jiang (resigned on 29 May 2015) CL(RZE—AaFAAZTHNHFE) 2/2
Wu Guilong (resigned on 29 May 2015) RERE(RZFE—AFAHAZFNHAFE) 1/2
Zhu Xiangrong (resigned 1 January 2016) KAZE(R-ZE—NF—H—HEFIT) 5/6

By invitation of the audit committee, other Directors and senior
management may also attend the meetings. The company
secretary acts as secretary of the committee and prepared
full minutes of the audit committee meetings with details of
discussions and decisions reached. Sufficient resources are
made available to the committee when independent legal or
professional advice is required. The audit committee members
meet with the external auditor twice a year.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2015:

e Reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the related
results announcement;

¢ Reviewed the interim accounts of the Company for the
6 months ended 30 June 2015 and the related results
announcement;

e Reviewed the quarterly accounts of the Company for the
3 months ended 31 March 2015 and 30 September 2015
respectively, and the related results announcements;

e Reviewed the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;
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e Reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company’s external auditor; and

e Reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and practices,
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and statutes, and
financial reporting matter.

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website.

From 1 January 2015 to 29 May 2015, the Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors and chaired by
Ms. Peng Jiang. Other members of the committee are Mr. Wu
Guilong and Mr. Zhu Xiangrong. From 29 May 2015 to 31
December 2015, the Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors and chaired by Ms. Yang Shuyan. Other
members of the committee are Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang and Mr.
Zhu Xiangrong. The composition of the nomination committee
during the year as well as the meeting attendance of the
committee members are as follows:

TRERME

o FEHRARAINEZEE 2 FH MR ZEE
B3 K

s EHAKREZESRANMEMNZRS
ST RIEAR £ AR R NOE R K B 75 E
WEH -

REEEE
REAZEGZIBRERNEHENES
GRE - AB KB (B HE - A
k&)  UREZZESMEFSRY
EE()WEetEkAaBERZALTNEE
Fe UhEINEFTSHBRANEE
AL (IHEBILFRTEET 2B
MM RVVHEEXENEZEEERES
A(ERT 8 (R R R RATH AR EL) 1868
FHRNESSRIEZR -ERZBEEZR
BREBERARRREESH -

HE-_Z—hF—A—HZ_Z—AHFHA
“tAB EEEH=LBIIFRTESH
R EIEATYILt ZESvHMKEAR
REERLERAALEE-B-E—RF
AFA-+hHE-_ZE—RHE+-_A=+—
H ZEBem=aBYIFRNITESHERK =
EARGREBELZL -Z8g2HMKE AR
BhAEERKABLLE - RERREBELE
SZREERRZEEKEB 2 HFESHE
AT

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings
BE=x HERE EERY
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBTES
Yang Shuyan (appointed on 29 May 2015) BREA(R-F—AaFAHA T NAEZE) 3/3
Zhang Xiaoguang (appointed on 29 May 2015) KX (R - F—AFAHH — TN HEZE) 3/3
Peng Jiang (resigned on 29 May 2015) CL(R—FE—AFHA-TNHAEFE) 1/1
Wu Guilong (resigned on 29 May 2015) RiEE (RZFE-—AFAHA TN —HEHE) 1/1
Zhu Xiangrong (resigned 1 January 2016) KM (R ZFE—NF—H—HFIT) 4/4
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The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2015:

e Reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;

e Reviewed the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of retiring Directors at the 2014 AGM; and

e Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the
determination of the remuneration packages of executive
directors and senior management to the remuneration
committee. The Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the Board and reviewing
and making recommendations on compensation-related issues.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website.

From 1 January 2015 to 29 May 2015, the Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors and chaired by
Ms. Peng Jiang. Other members of the committee are Mr. Wu
Guilong and Mr. Zhu Xiangrong. From 29 May 2015 to 31
December 2015, the Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors and chaired by Ms. Yang Shuyan. Other
members of the committee are Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang and Mr.
Zhu Xiangrong. The composition of the remuneration committee
during the year as well as the meeting attendance of the
committee members are as follows:
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Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings
BE= HERE, EERH
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBTES
Yang Shuyan (appointed on 29 May 2015) BREA(R-F—aFAA T NEEZE) 171
Zhang Xiaoguang (appointed on 29 May 2015) KEX (R=ZF—AFHAA -1+ /I1HEZT) 1/1
Peng Jiang (resigned on 29 May 2015) CIL(R=ZFE—AFAA=TNHAFHEF) 1/1
Wu Guilong (resigned on 29 May 2015) REE(R=ZF—AFAHAZF/LHAEFE) 1/1
Zhu Xiangrong (resigned 1 January 2016) KA (R ZFE—NF—H—HFFIT) 21
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The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2015:

e Reviewed the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management;

e Reviewed and recommended to the Board the remuneration
packages of directors and senior management; and

e Ensured that no director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual to employees and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has not adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors but has applied the principles
of the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules (“Required Standard of Dealings”). In
response to specific enquiry from the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with or they were not
aware of any non-compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis,
with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management, and is
considered one of the essential elements to ensure effective
corporate governance. During the year, the fees charged by
Elite Partners CPA Limited for audit and non-audit services of
HK$547,000 and HK$33,000 respectively. The non-audit services
mainly represent of taxation services.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining proper
and effective systems of internal control of the Group. The
Group’s internal control system includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to help
the achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The system
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement
of the Group's objectives.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and the Board
policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.
Mr. Chow Chi Wa, as the company secretary of the Company,
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge in 2015.

Budgetary Control

Budgets are prepared and are subject to the approval of the
Board prior to being adopted. There are procedures for review
and approval of major capital and expenses. Proper controls
are in place for recording of complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information. Regular reviews and
audits are carried out to ensure that the preparation of financial
statements is carried out in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws and regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under paragraph O of the CG
Code.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to Article of 59 of the Amended and Restated
Memorandum and Articles of the Association of the Company
(the “M&A”), it is stipulated that:—

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on
the written requisition of any one or more members of the
Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board does
not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s)
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Procedure for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business. The request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the board of directors of the Company will be asked to
include the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days if the Proposal requires approval
by way of a special resolution or an ordinary resolution of
the Company in an annual general meeting of the Company.

(b) Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(c) Notice in writing of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires approval
by way of an ordinary resolution of the Company in an
extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Company,
for the attention of company secretary, by email: investor.
relations@sinosplendid.com, fax: (852) 2237 7227, or mail to
8/F., E168, 166-168 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels
with shareholders and investors. Apart from publication of
quarterly, interim and annual reports, press announcement
and release, updated and key information of the Group are
available on the Company’s website. The Company’s website
offers communication channel between the Company and
its shareholders and investors. Regular media and analysts
briefings are held to update the information of the Group after
the quarterly, interim and annual results are released. The
Company’s registrars serve the shareholders in respect of all
share registration matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company its memorandum of association and articles of
association.
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B HE RS

D

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINO SPLENDID HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BT 18 R R P A R 5)
ELITE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino
Splendid Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 104 which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 March 2016

Siu Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number: P05898
10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRRREMAEEWE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—hE+ - H=+—HIFZ

2015 2014
—E—-REF —E—mEF
Notes HK$7000 HK$000
liikza FETT FET
Revenue EHER 5 79,184 81,573
Cost of sales i B AR (36,534) (39,253)
Gross profit EH 42,650 42,320
Other income, gains and losses EaUa A - s & Eia 7 22,274 13,558
Selling and distribution expenses & R 5 B AR (15,065) (18,553)
Administrative expenses TE A (36,979) (33,166)
Profit before tax BR %% A A1 12,880 4,159
Income tax expense PSR =X 8 (1,682) (874)
Profit for the year F A 4 A 9 11,198 3,285
Other comprehensive income Hig2E A
Items that may be reclassified HETREHIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B&®2HEAB:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINER 2 EH 5
foreign operation 3,781) (3,178)
Reclassification adjustment upon capital At EREE ARSI 2
distribution from available-for-sale EHORREE
investments - (870)
Other comprehensive income for the year  4F A E fth 2 F U A (3,781) (4,048)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHEUW AL 7,417 (763)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEBRRREMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFZF

2015 2014
ZE-RF —F-F
Notes HK$7000 HK$’000
Hrat FET FET
Profit attributable to: T5 AL EAEEF :
Owners of the Company ZN/NIESY SN 11,213 3,322
Non-controlling interests FEERRHE = (15) 37)
11,198 3,285
Total comprehensive income THALTEEZEBRALRE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIESTE PN 7,432 (726)
Non-controlling interests FEERR #E (15) 37)
7,417 (763)
(Restated)
(#E=7))
Earnings per share BRER 13
Basic and diluted (HK cent per share) ERREE (FRB) 0.17 0.05
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R &

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZFE—hF+_-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—Z2-AfF —ZT—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
M &t FET FEIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R RE 14 1,589 728
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 17 49,149 60,253
Deposits re - 777
50,738 61,758
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JiE UK BR SR 18 18,211 17,581
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE e R
other receivables H {th & I SR IR 3,255 3,300
Financial assets at fair value BRERREAFEIEZ
through profit or loss T RIEE 19 87,812 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 20 136,864 187,522
246,142 208,403
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable JE A5 BR R 24 3,367 4,282
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hih R RIERESEE 17,291 8,224
Deferred revenue i FE W 12,684 2,094
Tax liabilities HIEBE 2,115 1,555
35,457 16,155
Net current assets RBEEFRE 210,685 192,248
Total assets less current liabilities HEERMBAERE 261,423 254,006
Capital and reserves IRA K ke
Share capital f&% 7 21 64,304 6,430
Share premium and reserves f& 15 % B R (% 1 195,090 245,532
Equity attributable to owners ZNNEIES TN T EE s 3
of the Company 259,394 251,962
Non-controlling interests AR = 2,029 2,044
Total equity REESHEE 261,423 254,006
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 20176.
RZE—R"FE=ZA+N\B KLESSHERFETE-
Chow Chi Wa Yang Xingan
BAEE BE R
Director Director
EE E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z

|A.| == N\ /
BEERBER
—E-REF=AS+—ALFEE

Attributable
Investment Capital to non-
Share Share Capital  Goodwill ~revaluation redemption ~ Reserve Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  Subtotal interests Total
Note
Note (a) Note (a)  3(h)&15 Note (b)
RE -0 FER
RE  RGEE EAEE HEEE  EfRE BERE  HEE  EXRE  ReEA Mt EEEE L
(i
K@  KE@  30RIS GG
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
e TEr  TEr  fEnr  TEr  fEr  TEr TR TEr FEn TEr FEn
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-MF-A-A 1,072 39,337 24,650 (31,193) 870 11,690 19,025 52,246 327,903 445,600 2,081 447,681
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - - 3322 3322 (37) 3,285
Other comprehensive income EREMZENA
for the year = - - - (870) - - (3,178) = (4,048) = (4,048)
Total comprehensive income ERRENALE
for the year - - = = (870) = = (3,178) 3322 (726) (37) (763)
Share issued upon bonus issue BTURECEIRG 5,358 (5,358) = = = = = = = = = =
Dividends (Note 12) & (Mik2) - - - - - - - - (192912 (192912) - (192912)
At 31 December 2014 and RZF-METZA=1-AR
1 January 2015 —3-1%5-A-8 6,430 33,979 24,650 (31,193) - 11,690 19,025 49,068 138,313 251,962 2,044 254,006
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - - a1 (15 11,19
Other comprehensive income EREMZENA
for the year = = = = = = = (3,781) = (3,781) = (3,781)
Total comprehensive income ERRENALE
for the year - - - - - - - By 123 7432 15 7417
Share issued upon bonus issue ETARKEETRE 57874 (33979)  (23,8%) - - - - - - - - -
64,304 - 755 (31,193) - 11,690 19,025 45,287 149,526 259,394 2,029 261,423
Note a:  Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2010 ffita: REREHSAE(ZZ—ZFE
Revision as amended from time to time), the share premium HE N ENETCH DRIWN ﬂﬂx{ﬁ,ﬁﬁ%‘;
and capital reserve of the Company may be applied for KB A fE AT AE D R SR AR S
payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders TRE HEEIRIERREE
provided that immediately following the date on which the & RRAIRENEEEBBEFR X
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company FE 2B
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.
Note b:  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign  Mfizh : RIBERAREFEARZLME ([

investment enterprises (“FIEs”) established in the People’s
Republic of China excluding Hong Kong (the “PRC”), a
certain portion of the FIE’s profits is required to be transferred
to reserve funds which are not distributable. Transfers to
this reserve are made out of the FIE's profits after taxation
calculated in accordance with accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to PRC enterprises (“PRC
GAAP”) and shall not be less than 10% of profit after taxation
calculated in accordance with PRC GAAP. No such transfer
was made in either year as there was no such profit after tax
from the FIEs in either year.

Bl AEEEE)KILZIEREDR
X (M ERECE]) ZHBERER
MBI INEREREZE TRFASE
BRETHADKZEHEA - HREERE
BB IRBERRTEER S
FAEAMEMBRAN([PEEEES
FADFEIIHREDCEZBHR
BANFE ATEERRETFELES
FPERIGHE  BRIEEF.210% © #
REFRETEREINERELEZR

Blem A R R &S A T
CEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meREmMER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—hE+ - H=+—HIFZ

2015 2014
—2-IHF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$000
TET T
Profit before tax B £ A1 Y42 ) 12,880 4,159
Adjustments for: M TFIEEB LA
Amortisation of management fee for BHAHEERE < ER
available-for-sale investments EH - 480
Bank interest income RITH B WA (336) (426)
Depreciation of property, plant and M HBRBZEITE
equipment 779 436
Impairment losses on accounts JE W BR R 2 Rl 1B S 18
receivable 538 787
Impairment losses on available-for-sale AHEERE 2 REEE
investments - 3,360
Loss on disposal of financial assets HEBEBBERKREATE
at fair value through profit or loss 5']@2%@5?2@?% 5,015 -
Fair value change on financial assets BERRERATEIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREECATEE 2,876 -
Impairment losses on other receivables H e Wk IE 2 R E B 18 - 3,509
Investment income on available-for-sale AHEERE ZRERA
investments (29,293) (15,947)
Operating loss before working capital HEESBYFI o REBE
changes (7,541) (3,642)
Increase in accounts receivable JFE W B R 38 0 (1,164) (5,164)
Decrease in prepayments, FERFRIE 2 R H A UK
deposits and other receivables FRIER A 822 9,472
Decrease in accounts payable & AF BR SO, > (915) (1,591)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HAth eI R et B E
and accrued liabilities #hn, Cd) 9,067 (1,001)
Increase in deferred revenue i & UK 5 32 N 10,590 805
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEBRE,/ (A2
fﬁéﬁ 10,859 (1,121)
Singapore taxes paid, net BN AR A IR - R R (1,122) (2,109)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBHREB (A2
operating activities BEFHE 9,737 (3,230)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ll‘/j_\/\Iﬁaﬁlllbi’%%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &l 2 —F—aAF+ - H="1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E—-RF —E—mE
HK$000 HK$’000
T#ET T
Cash flows from investing activities REFZHZHERE
Investment income received from ERAHEEREZRE
available-for-sale investments WA 29,293 15,947
Proceeds from capital return of AHEEREREHEZ
available-for-sale investments FT 18 5018 14,151 9,580
Interest received B F & 336 1,201
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEFZBRERRIEATE
through profit or loss FIEZ & /& E (103,368) =
Proceed from disposal on financial HEFBRBHZRZATE
assets at fair value through FIEZ SREELZ
profit or loss FT 18 5018 7,665 -
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHLERE
investments 3,079) (12,791)
Deposit for purchase of property, plant BEWE BELRBEZ
and equipment Re - (777)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWHE HELRE
equipment (1,683) (566)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZTH (FTA) Bz
investing activities ReFHE (56,685) 12,594
Cash flows from financing activities METH2RERE
Dividend paid BT E - (192,912)
Cash used in financing activities BMEEHFFAZES - (192,912)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RE&ERREEZEZ R FHE (46,948) (183,548)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RENZRERREEE
of year 187,522 373,497
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXZHHRERRCEE
and cash equivalents - (3,710) (2,427)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RELKZEHERELZE 136,864 187,522
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash HRERBRELEELRZ
equivalents: 2
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 136,864 187,522
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—hE+ - H=+—HIFZ

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are engaged in
travel media operations with provision of advertising
services through the internet and travel magazines, event
organising services and magazine publication.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2015
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
— CONTINUED

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle!
Disclosure Initiative'
Accounting for Acquisitions of interests in

Joint Operations'
Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Exception’

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl —FE—aF+ - H="+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”). In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further,
the disclosure requirements set out in the GEM Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended
with reference to the new CO and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of
information in the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented
or disclosed in the financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or GEM Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended GEM Listing Rules
are not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKS$"), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE-E&

— CONTINUED
(a) Business combination and basis of (@) EBEHREERE
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to
the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —E—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(b) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement
date is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be
transferred to the retained earnings at the time when the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of
or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions of new assets and operations of another
entity after 1 January 2001, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see
the accounting policy below).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl 2 —F—aAF+ - HA="1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE-E&

— CONTINUED

(b) Goodwill — Continued (b) BE-—&
Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 RZEFERF—HA—HEY
January 2005 é%#%g%ﬁﬁfgﬁég?ﬁ§ﬁg

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January
2005 was recognised as an asset and initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group's interest in the recognised amounts
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s
interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess was
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

56

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(d) Property, plant and equipment — Continued

(e)

(f)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payable are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

58

()

(g)

Revenue recognition — Continued

Revenue from travel media includes income from
management fees, registration and exhibitor fees on the
various events and conferences organised by the Group.
The revenue was recognised upon completion of the
events and conferences.

All prepaid fees received from customers are initially
recognised as deferred revenue and revenue is
recognised when the above revenue recognition criteria
are met.

Revenue from travel media also include provision
of hotel accommodation and hotel packages which
is recognised when the services are rendered by the
Group as an agent on a net basis.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl 2 —F—aAF+ - HA="1+—HIFE

3. FESFHHEX-&
(g HIE—&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(g) Taxation — Continued

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in

equity.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which it is able to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

60

(g)

(h)

Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax assets and liability are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(h) Foreign currencies — Continued

(i)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of that operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

62

()

(k)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— CONTINUED

(k) Financial instruments — Continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the three categories, including loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
accounts receivable, and other receivables, bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

64

— CONTINUED
(k) Financial instruments — Continued
(iii) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

(iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivates, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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3. EREHBR-&

k) ¥HTHEA-&
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(k) Financial instruments — Continued
(v) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor,
issuer or counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such
as accounts receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s experience
of collecting payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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— CONTINUED
(k) Financial instruments — Continued
(v) Impairment of financial assets — Continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of accounts
receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When an account
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHHE-E&

— CONTINUED
(k) Financial instruments — Continued k) BB TR-&
(vi) Financial liabilities (vi) T B &

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable
and other payables and accrued liabilities) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

(vii)Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

(viii) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instrument is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.

(ix) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z =&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(k) Financial instruments — Continued

68

M

(ix) Derecognition — Continued
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions —
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period, with corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be retained in the share options reserve.

(m) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of

the Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(m) Related parties — Continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)The entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— CONTINUED

(m) Related parties — Continued

70

(n)

KE

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Y SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which

are

described in Note 3, management is required to make

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based

on

experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — CONTINUED

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For the private equity funds disclosed in Note 17, the ranges
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
fair value cannot be measured reliably, therefore they are
measured at cost less impairment. Management judgment
is required in determining the impairment loss, if any. In
assessing the private equity funds, management takes into
account the investment’s financial performance (including
such factors as earnings trends, dividend payments, asset
quality and specific events), the near term prospects of the
investment, the current and expected financial condition of
the investment’s issuer. Any changes in these estimates may
result in an impairment loss.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

HEFTREM 2 EERER-&

AEBEL G MEBRERSET AR
Af e & T At 2 IEFTEEI A RHERT
ZHEEKTE  AERRERTN IS
[ HE =R - 3k fini B BRI AT B AN R BOR
KHRBOBERTE ZETENAH
e Ko o 2R HA i e R

AHHEERMEERE

M EI7EEZABERAEZSM
FHEHAFEANEREHY AT HHK
MR8 Bk & TY IR A A E RO (E
AE-EHEERHETREESRE (1
B)ELHE - R AR ELERAE
R EEECEBREZMBRR
(BRANEBE BB -BEEEREME
EEHERER) REZEHASINAR
HZERBE2BITAZRA LAY
A B E 2 R T E AT g
BURE &8 -

—E
REBRAFEZELEDMMT

2015 2014

—Z2-1% —F-mF

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

Travel Media iR 0% 15 52 79,184 81,573
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl —E— A F+ - H="+—HIFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of the Group's
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit were mainly
derived from travel media, which is regarded as a single
reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
senior management for purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. In addition, the principal
assets employed by the Group are located in Singapore.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than
entity-wide disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Httlg A - W= RSB
2015 2014
—F-1F —F-OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Investment income from AHEHEREY
available-for-sale investments KEBA 29,293 15,947
Bank interest income RITA B M A 336 426
Other non-operating income HAthIEae & WA 536 545
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair [H&EFBIE@RKAEATFEINEZ
value through profit or loss CRMEEZER (5,015) =
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ E#BE@mKRIE A FEIEZ
value through profit or loss EMEEZATFEEE (2,876) =
Impairment losses on available-for-sale AL &K% & Z M EEE
investments - (3,360)
22,274 13,558
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. BB
2015 2014
ZE-HF —F-OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax — Singapore BN EA R 78 — %7 h0 3% 2,159 1,759
Over-provision in prior years BEFEEEREG (477) (885)
1,682 874
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) BEMNERDRBEFE 2 (A5 BRDE
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. No provision wAE16.5% M KRFFE (ZF—HF:
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group had 16.5%) AR AEERBE_T— 5
no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the year ended F+_A=T—BHLFEIEERE
31 December 2015 (2014: HK$ Nil). A T (] FE SR BE0a A B bt 3 R F
BRMNER BB (ZE—HE T8
JL) ©
For the subsidiary in Singapore, it is subject to a flat MEME 2B RAME  RIEH—
corporate tax rate of 17% (2014: 17%). NAITREN17% (ZF—F :17% ) 8
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B H5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZF

INCOME TAX EXPENSE — CONTINUED

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

FreBimx —&
ARG 2 BORR S BR85S R A A

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

EEWER G MERMT

2015 2014
—EF-1F —THF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAET
Profit before tax B 5 B Va1 12,880 4,159
Tax calculated at Singapore flat corporate &7 13 5 — 2 A1 % £ 17%
tax rate of 17% (2014: 17%) (ZZE—MF:17%) ;& 25\ 2,190 707
Effect of different tax rate of operation in B REBEB TR E 2 &
the PRC and Hong Kong (132) 50
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax  BEHFIA 2 Fi 1552 £
purposes (5,037) (2,791)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  NAIFEH T B & HRE 2 5 32 2 B
tax purposes -] 1,677 2,690
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERATIHE R EZH RN BTE
differences not recognised (527) (295)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBERZRETE 3,988 1,398
Over-provision in respect of prior year KEBRE R 477) (885)
Income tax expense FTiERif 1,682 874

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
FEERKRERARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year is arrived at after charging:

9. FREF

F A A E R NFI&IR

2015 2014
—E-AF —F-OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Operating leases KEeHE
— in respect of office premises — BB AEDE 2,963 2,263
— in respect of office equipment — BB AERE - 40
Depreciation of property, plant and M B RBENE
equipment 779 436
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXA (BRERESHE)
emoluments) 23,895 30,092
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iE A& f& F 5T 21 {1 7 2,659 2,750
Total staff costs 8 TR A #%8 26,554 32,842
Net foreign exchange loss M X B 48 H 58 4,471 3,968
Auditor’ s remuneration Z A0 B & 759 550
Impairment losses on other receivables H {th e I GRIE 2 BB E 18 - 3,509
Impairment losses on accounts receivable &4 8k 5 2 8 (B & 18 538 787
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BA RS SRR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—hE+ - H=+—HIFZ

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10.EEM &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2014: 8) EfSENTI108 (ZE—HF:8%)
directors were as follows: EE2MewnT
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_Z—h1F+=-H=+—H
IEEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits Share-based scheme Total
in kind payments Fees  contributions  emoluments
e 28 UR#% A BIKEF
REYFE ERzAOR ok AN MesE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FEL FET FET FEL
Executive directors: WIES:
Mr. Chow Chi Wa AEELE 128 - 120 4 252
Mr. Xiao Hua (Note a) HELE (fiita) = = 360 = 360
Mr. Yang Xingan (Note b) BRREE (Hb) - - 220 - 220
Mr. Wang Tao (Note c) TERE (Hitc) - = 30 > 30
128 - 730 4 862
Independent non-executive BUEHTES:
directors:
Ms. Peng Jiang (Note d) wilnt (Hitd) - = 15 > 15
Mr. Zhu Xiangrong (Note ) RARFEE (Hite) - - 36 - 36
Mr. Wu Guilong (Note 1) REELE (M) - - 15 - 15
Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang (Note g) ~ RE L4 (Miztg) - - 70 - 70
Ms. Yang Shuyan (Note h) BRER T (Hith) - - 70 - 70
- . 206 . 206
Non-executive directors: FRTES:
Ms. Xu Yun (Note i) ¥t (Hati) = = 234 = 234
128 . 1,170 4 1,302
76 Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

FEERKBERERAA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFZF

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS — CONTINUED

10.

EEME-E

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_ZFE—NF+-A=+—H
ILFEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits Share-based scheme Total
in kind payments Fees  contributions  emoluments
o 20 iR & RIKEF
LEDAE  ERIER e B 5R WemE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT TR THT FHET
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Chow Chi Wa BEELE 100 = 120 - 220
Mr. Huang Honghua (Note j) ~ EHER 4 (Hiz2)) - - 360 - 360
Mr. Xiao Hua HERE = = 360 = 360
100 - 840 - 940
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Ms. Peng Jiang wIxt - - 36 - 36
Mr. Zhu Xiangrong RIAISR S & - - 36 - 36
Mr. Wu Guilong REERE - - 36 - 36
- - 108 - 108
Non-executive directors: FRTES:
Ms. Xu Yun (Note i) BELL (Hazi) = = 240 = 240
Mr. Mao Hong Cheng (Note k)~ 54 (H7Fk) = = = = =
- - 240 - 240
100 - 1,188 - 1,288
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl —FE—aF+ - H="+—HIFZE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS — CONTINUED

Notes:

78

(a)

Mr. Xiao Hua resigned as an Executive director on 1 January
2016.

Mr. Yang Xingan appointed as an Executive director on 30
January 2015.

Mr. Wang Tao appointed as an Executive director on 29
September 2015.

Ms. Peng Jiang resigned as an Independent non-executive
director on 29 May 2015.

Mr. Zhu Xiangrong resigned as an Independent non-executive
director on 1 January 2016.

Mr. Wu Guilong resigned as an Independent non-executive
director on 29 May 2015.

Mr. Zhang Xiaoguang appointed as an Independent non-
executive director on 29 May 2015.

Ms. Yang Shuyan appointed as an Independent non-executive
director on 29 May 2015.

Ms. Xu Yun resigned as a Non-executive director on 21
December 2015.

Mr. Huang Honghua resigned as an Executive director on 31
December 2014.

Mr. Mao Hong Cheng resigned as a Non-executive director on
22 January 2014.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. During
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no share
option of the Company was granted to a director in respect
of his services provided to the Group under a share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in Note 26.
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFZF

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, no director’'s emoluments were included. The
emoluments of the remaining five (2014: five) individuals
were as follows:

1M.EEME
AEERELRSHEMALTE R BT
BEEEZME B TRAZ (ZT—/mN
FRE)SEEHEMA L HHEBED
—F:

2015 2014

—Z-EF —E—mF

HK$000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

Salaries and other benefits Fre RE AR 5,537 6,520
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & K48 Fll 5t 2] & 240 256
5,777 6,776

The emoluments of the 5 (2014: 5) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

B (ZE—NmF ER)ERaHFHMA
TZME N FTIIAR :

2015 2014
—E—FE —E—F
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$NIL TO HK$1,000,000 %5%772—1,000,000‘%77: 3 2
HK$1,000,001 TO HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T —1,500,000/% 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 TO HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T —2,000,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 TO HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7c —2,500,0007%8 7T - 1
5 5

DIVIDENDS 12. R &

On 9 May 2014, the Company declared a special dividend
of HK$0.3 per share to shareholders out of the Company’s
retained profits. The dividend was paid in June 2014 totaling
HK$192,912,000.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014.

R-ZE—MERANB  ARERE
REBHEF P RRREIRE R RESR
03B -BHEBREER T —WF N
A&t &£4192,912,0007 It °

ERV TEBERBE_T—AF+=
A=t —BR=-ZF-—WHF+=H
=+ —HUEFERN RS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —E—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

80

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

1.8 &R

KRR EARLERERNREER
Ty IRE T 5 &g st &

2015 2014
—F-IHF —THF
HK$’000 HK$000
TET THET
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic and A EFRERNREFRT 2 27
diluted earnings per share 11,213 3,322
2015 2014
—F-IHF —THF
‘000 ‘000
FK T
Number of shares R EE Restated
RES
Weighted average number of ordinary HRAEBRERAREERN 2
shares for the purpose of basic and - 3E AR N 15 B
diluted earnings per share 6,430,419 643,042
Bonus issue of shares by capitalisation B0 4 B BRI AEE REATAR
of the share premium account (Htzt21)
(Note 21) - 5,787,377
Weighted average number of ordinary REBITARERFTEFRER R
shares for the purpose of basic and SRR 2 TmBRnE T H
diluted earnings per share after
bonus issue 6,430,419 6,430,419
5,787,376,614 bonus shares issued on 6 October 2015 BRRBTABRLEES R=_ZE—HF

are deemed to be in issue at the beginning of the relevant
periods assuming that the issuance of bonus shares has been

effective.

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above

for both basic and diluted earnings per share. 2 B o

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
TEERRBERAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - WS RRHE
Computer
Furniture equipment
Leasehold and Office and Motor
improvement fixture equipment software vehicles Total
HEME BRR WAE BRERE
30 %8 R k&M HE #5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST R
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-ME—A—A 4,209 430 8,280 38,655 15 51,589
Exchange realignments AR (98) ®) 21 (323) = (450)
Additions WE - - 5 561 - 566
Disposals HE - - (679) (34,987) - (35,666)
Reclassification NS - - (274) 274 - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-MET=A=+—HEK
and 1 January 2015 R-Z-H&-f—AH 4,111 422 7,311 4,180 15 16,039
Exchange realignments I 5, 3% (67) (5) (16) (254) = (342)
Additions e = > 115 774 794 1,683
Disposals e (2,949) (328) (6,995) (3,527) - (13,799)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+-A=1+—H 1,095 89 415 1,173 809 3,581

Accumulated depreciation R TE

At 1 January 2014 RZT-ME—-HA—H 4,209 420 7,958 38,343 15 50,945
Exchange realignments B 5 R (98) ) (20) (279) - (404)
Provided during the year ERXH - 2 13 421 - 436
Eliminated on disposals & R 4 85 - - (679) (34,987) - (35,666)
At 31 December 2014 RIZB-ME+ZA=+-HK

and 1 January 2015 “Z-15—-A—H 4,111 415 7,272 3,498 15 15,311
Exchange realignments AR (67) ) (13) (214) = (299
Provided during the year ~ FRAXH! - 1 21 598 159 779
Eliminated on disposals & R (2,949) (328) (6,995) (3,527) = (13,799)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—RF+=A=+—H 1,095 83 285 355 174 1,992
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-AF+-A=+—H - 6 130 818 635 1,589
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-—WE+-A=+—H - 7 39 682 = 728
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —E—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

14. % HBERIRE &

— CONTINUED

The above items of property, plant and equipment are PR #BERRETDABGER
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per THFMETE :

annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the HEWEEE ZRHAEFHX

term of the lease,

33'5% — 50%

or 333 % — 50% (AREEHBZE)
Furniture and fixtures 20% REREE 20%
Office equipment 20% WNERE 20%
Computer equipment and 33'3% BIERE LM 33145%
software
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
GOODWILL 15. &
HK$000
FET
Internet Portal =0 DN E
COST R AR
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZTE—UE—H—H 519,623
Written off (Note) sy (4 ) (519,623)
At 31 December 2014, 1 January 2015 and R-_ZE—WFE+_—_A=+—8"
31 December 2015 —T-hF—HA—HBRK
—ET-—RE+-_F=+—H -
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT ZitRE
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZE—MFE—HA—H 519,623
Written off (Note) sy (A7) (519,623)

At 31 December 2014, 1 January 2015 and
31 December 2015

—A-AR=FT-BEF=A=t+-F

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2015

AREE
R-ZF—AF+_H=1+—8

At 31 December 2014

RZZE—NFE+=—A=+—H

Note: Goodwill balance has been written off as the business

operation was discontinued.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
FEERRRERARA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

15. GOODWILL - CONTINUED

Travel Media

Impairment Testing

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to travel media and included in reserves.

i

AR

Travel media and included in reserves B 32 355

15. B8 -§&

hie iz 45 B2

B 18 8] 7

FOREREME BERSERIKE
e Wat AREHEA -

2015 2014
—E-REF —ZF—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
31,193 31,193

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit
(“CGU") has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a one-year period, and a discount rate of 16%
(2014: 16%). Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using growth rates of 4% to 5% (2014: 5% to
6%) over the projected period of five years. These growth
rates are based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
do not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the
relevant industries. Another key assumption for the value
in use calculation is the budgeted gross margins, which
are determined based on the CGU’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU.

IR eELSEA ([BeEAEM])
ZAKEleEIREBEEABEGTEM
Er - BHE:TEDREBEHREEERE
W—FHPRBEMSCREEREN
&E££E$16O/o (:%ﬁ_mi : 160/0)%,5\
Ale —FHZE 2 RS MEKI%ES%
ZTE—MF:5%%E6% ) TEHASF
WEEREE BRBREDIRIEEBAIT
EURBAGERTISBBEBITE
REEERR  FHY -FEREAZS
—HIZBRAENEREE  JIRER
CEABMCATREREREST
BERZBAMEE -BREEMRE Z
EBR[2EMNEEAEEHITI2EH
ReEXBEM REBEBBILIER
CEEBEU2AKEESE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —E—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

16. SUBSIDIARIES
Place of
incorporation/
registration
Name of subsidiary and operations
EREL/
HELRER ERREEHY
TTG Global Limited Hong Kong
BREFGRARAA &R
TTG Asia Media Pte. Ltd ~ Singapore
R

17.

84

Particulars of issued and

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Unlisted securities:

— Equity interest in private

16. Kt B 2 7

Proportion ownership interest

paid up capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRARMRERAZFE ARRZERERLAH IRER
Directly Indirectly
E& L
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—g-i% —F-R% ~%-1f ZF-0F -%-1f CZT-[MF
% % % %
100 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares 100 100 - - Investment holding
100REER 1005 &K RERR
100,000 ordinary 100,000 ordinary - - 100 100 Provision of advertising
shares of SGD1 each  shares of SGD1 each and event organising
100,000 8 & 100,000/ &% services and magazine
BT Z HEFIRTL publication
EER LER REEERERED
TR AR e 5%
REFEREENEB QR BT EMES
&jé % o
ZAvA
EREIESRREHARERENL
EEBRIZFEZAKSENERQ
Al-BEEARREHEGHBERARZHF
EREEFEBN TR
17. TR EERE
2015 2014
—E—RF —E—OF
HK$000 HK$000
FET TET
FELEMES:
—“RAERAESZ
B HE 28 49,149 60,253

equity funds

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
TEERRBERAERAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 # 2 —

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

EJJ 75 3R 2R P 5

—hAFEFtZHA=F—HIFE

177. 7 HERE-&

— CONTINUED
The Group has invested in three (2014: Three) private equity funds REBEREN=( (=T — M5 : _TWL
as a limited partner: %%$%(ﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ@f&é%
2015 2014
—E—RHF —E 04
Notes HK$7000 HK$’000
Hiat FAET FET
New Horizon Capital, L.P. New Horizon Capital, L.P. a
(“New Horizon”) ([New Horizon | ) 31,455 45,426
Greycroft Partners, L.P. Greycroft Partners, L.P. b
(“Greycroft”) (I Greycroft]) 5,646 5,826
Whiz Partners Inc. (“Whiz") Whiz Partners Inc. ([Whiz |) C 12,048 9,001
49,149 60,253
Note: Hiat
(@ New Horizon is a Cayman Islands Exempted Limited (@) New Horizon SR =ZZZ L& AKX

Partnership formed in April 2007 and commenced operations
in May 2007. New Horizon makes direct and indirect
investments in state-owned enterprises in the PRC, with a
focus on the consumer products, health care, alternative
energy, manufacturing industries and other entities with strong
fundamentals and high growth rate. New Horizon completed
its final closing in June 2007, raising aggregate committed
capital of HK$3,946,800,000, including the general partner’s
commitment of HK$46,800,000. In May 2007, the Group
signed the subscription document indicating its total capital
commitment to the fund is HK$109,200,000, representing
2.8% of the partnership interest. At 31 December 2015, the
Group had cumulatively contributed HK$107,702,000 (2014:
HK$106,894,000). The remaining commitment paid as at 31
December 2015 was HK$1,498,000 (2014: HK$2,306,000).

(b) Greycroft is a Delaware Limited Partnership. Greycroft engages
in venture capital investing in early stage revenue producing
companies with particular emphasis on applications of digital
media in the wireless and internet arena, although investments
will be made from time to time in other industries. Greycroft’s
aggregate committed capital is HK$585,078,000 including
the general partner’s commitment of HK$31,278,000. The
Group signed the subscription document indicating its total
capital commitment to the fund is HK$7,800,000, representing
1.3% of the partnership interest. At 31 December 2015, the
Group had cumulatively contributed HK$7,800,000 (2014:
HK$7,800,000).

NHESHEEREEREE AR
WHR-_ZEZ+FHARKREL - New
Horizon&E # K M #Z & & BB A
¥ BEIREBER BERE B
(A ﬁ Bl R EMRERE B

ESEEXR7ERE - New Horizon
_iitﬁz/\ﬂﬁ’féiéﬁﬁ%iiﬁﬁ/\
£15 4% & £3,946,800,0007% 7t

% BE B ANEIEL6,800,0008
T -R_ZZLFRA AEEEE
REX M PR E S E S 2 88 R
#& 5109,200,000/8 7t BN & #Z #Ex
228% R-_TE—HE+-_A=+—
B A&EEE &5 H%107,702,000
BT (ZZ — U4 :106,894,000%5
L) RZFE—RAF+=-A=+—HX%
5 2 g HE 51,498,000/ 70 (==
—PY4F : 2,306,000 7T ) °

Greycroft B E B R EMN —KEAR
BIEA % AR Greycroftifit EAIE &
AEE HEAFRABE BERE
BEREBMKEE 2 SIS HERE
AzERBEERR] ENRTREE
RHEAhEZE - GreycroftZ%@% B E
/585,078,000 L BIELEEBA R
AN HE31,278,0008 Lo A EE B & =F
B PIAEHES 2 88 7KK
¥& 57,800,0005 T Bl & B iEm 2
13% R-_TE—RAF+_-_A=+—
H A& B R H&7,800,000% 5T
—ZF—Pu4 :7,800,000/87C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z =&

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
— CONTINUED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—AFFZH=1—HIFE

177. 7 HERE-&

Note: — Continued Hiet: — &

() Whiz is a Limited Partnership. It supports business (0 Whizh—REBRBEEER AT
development activities of portfolio companies of Whiz Asia H ¥ % Whiz Asia Evolution Fund
Evolution Fund which targets Japanese Companies with REBARAFIZEBERES &
world class proprietary technology and processes with the ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ AR B BT B
potential for overseas expansion. Whiz’s aggregate committed HE AT IMNESR 2 B AR R Al Whiz
capital is JPY12,800,000,000 (equivalent to approximately zz- & & /312,800,000,000 H
HK$975,476,000) including the general partner’s B (18 & M #975,476,000% 7T ) -
commitment of JPY400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately BIEE B A % AFHE400,000,000 H
HK$30,484,000). The Group signed the subscription document B (18 & R #30,484,000% 7T ) ° &
on 24 March 2014 indicating its total capital commitment SER-_Z-—HNF=A-+TMMBE%
to the fund is JPY500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately ERBXMH INAEHES LA
HK$38,105,000), representing 3.9% of the partnership N #HE 7500,000,000H [E (18 & R
interest. At 31 December 2015, the Group had cumulatively 4938,105,00087T) * Bl & B HE =
contributed JPY217,563,000(equivalent to approximately 39% R-ZZE—RE+_A=+—
HK$13,991,000) (2014: JPY170,812,000 (equivalent to H A&EEE R H&217,563,000
approximately HK$13,070,000)). The remaining commitment HE (HEMK413,991,000% JT)
as at 31 December 2015 was JPY282,438,000 (equivalent (ZZE—/m4%:170,812,000H ﬁ
to approximately HK$18,163,000) (2014: JPY329,188,000 (8 & K 413,070,000 7T) ) °
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,314,000)). The timing —E-RHFETZA=+—8" /ﬂﬁﬁ
of capital contribution is generally determined by general 2 HER282,438,000H B (HE
partner. The term of Whiz will be six years and nine months R #18,163,0008 L) (=ZZF— Y
unless terminated earlier pursuant to the partnership % :329,188,000H B (& R 4
agreement. 21,314,000/ 7T) ) © & B fdl — AR B

ETBERABT BRIERBESEAD
BRIBRER L Whizz @& BRI RN
FHAEHA o
(d) All of the investment were classified as non-current assets in d) FIBREREGREMBRARETAD
the consolidated statement of financial position. RIERBEE -
18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18. FE WL iR X

2015 2014

—g-HE -T-Qm4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TAET T

Accounts receivable JfE s BR 3R 21,053 19,881
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful B RIE R

debts (2,842) (2,300)

18,211 17,581

86
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — CONTINUED

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally for a period of one
month, extending up to six months for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
accounts receivable and has a credit control policy to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group has provided
impairment losses on accounts receivable based on
experience of collecting payments.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

18. EWER K — &

AEBEEPETZRZUEESTR
REI-FEEH-RAH—EA XEX
PzEEBRAERINEA K& E
B H ) R U B 2 8 R R AR B B AR B
2 HIEE BRI R ARKFERE
SERR - BEARNZHEHSREE
BT HEM - ARBEIZBESKER
8 W B 3K 2 BB &S 1B 1B B 4 o

RIFEEZER AR WEHRRAZ5E 0
PR REREE 2 EBR R 2 BRE D AT 1A
T

2015 2014

= —T—mEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFET

Within 90 days 90H A 15,760 13,957
91-120 days 91-120H 595 646
121-180 days 121-180H 643 1,031
Over 180 days and within one year HiE180EER —F A 1,213 1,947
18,211 17,581

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
evaluation scoring system to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by each customer.
Limits and evaluation attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly by senior management based on experience of
collecting payments. Over 20% (2014: 22%) of the accounts
receivable that are neither past due nor impaired have the
best credit quality under the credit system of the Group.

Accounts receivable that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Accounts receivable that were past
due but not impaired relate to a number of customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on the past
experience, the management estimated that the carrying
amounts may be recovered.

EZEMNERHEL 28 AEBER
REGUFIERBERPZEEER
AEREREFEERB -mREEE
REBEZRFERENFIEEFE
B2 RN FEAR - #B3B20% (—F— 1
F122% ) RV IR AR RE 2 FE U BR 3K
REAKBZEERAREFARER
B

KAMTRAEZ BRER D ERS
WA ER R BE AR - BB
{BRREZ R85 & Y A
MEERBRINES AR RIEAE
15 B 5 R T A ALK -

Annual Report 2015 87

—E-REER



88

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —E—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — CONTINUED

Ageing of accounts receivable which are past due but not

18. EWERK — &

B 8 BB RO B 2 B U B 2 R e

impaired:

2015 2014
—E-RE —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Within 90 days 90H 12,188 10,031
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 595 646
121 - 180 days 121 - 180H 643 1,031
Over 180 days HBiB180H 1,213 1,947
14,639 13,655

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RZERBEHE2EH:
2015 2014
—g-HE —ZT-@mF
HK$000 HK$000
T#ET T
Balance at beginning of the year FUREER (2,300) (1,556)
Impairment losses on accounts receivable EUAR TR 2 RIEE B (538) (787)
Exchange realignment bE 3 o B 4) 43
Balance at end of the year FRERR (2,842) (2,300)

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in Note
3(k). An impairment loss of HK$538,000 has been provided
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$787,000)
since the Group does not consider the amount will be
collectible.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
TEERRBERAERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 TR AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity securities, at market value fEARFE S mmE
Listed in Hong Kong REE LD

9. ZBERRBAVEINEZE
MEE

2015 2014
—E-RE —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
87,812 -

The fair values of all listed securities are determined
reference to the quoated market bid price.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash held
by the Group and short-term bank deposits with original
maturity of less than 3 months. As at 31 December 2015,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$38,748,000 and
HK$28,214,000 were denominated in United States dollars
and Singapore dollars, respectively (2014: HK$104,651,000
and HK$39,262,000 denominated in Renminbi and
Singapore dollars respectively).

FELTERZAFEDZZRET
BZEEEERE-

20. RITEREES
AEBZHETEBRRSBRELAE
EFEEZReEMRETEIHAILR=
BAZEHETER- R_T—RHF
+=—A=+—B8B BTLEHBLES
38,748,000/ 7T }.28,214,000/% T 5
BIAETTRF M TAR (ZZE—NW
% 104,651,000/ 7T }39,262,0007%5
TTABAARERIFTMIEITALR) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS SRR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —E—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZ

21. B A

Number of shares Share capital

BB A R 2
HK$000
FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREHE0.01/E T 2 B
Authorised: EERA
At 1 January 2014, and RZE—MNFE—HA—H"
31 December 2014, 1 January 2015 —E—OF+ZA=+—8HK
—E—RF—A—H 3,000,000,000 30,000
Increase during the year F 3 N 47,000,000,000 470,000
At 31 December 2015 RZF-—AF+-A=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2014 M-E-—mE—F—H 107,173,641 1,072
Share issued upon bonus issue (Note a)  FEHATALIREE #1778 (A7ita) 535,868,205 5,358
At 31 December 2014 and RITE—NE+-_HA=+—HK
1 January 2015 —ET—h&%—HF—H 643,041,846 6,430
Share issued upon bonus issue (Note b)  FEHATAL RIS B 8170 H (M 7th) 5,787,376,614 57,874
At 31 December 2015 R-_FT-—AF+_A=+—H 6,430,418,460 64,304
Notes: M5
a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution in relation to the bonus a) BER-Z—Z=F+"A=+—H#
issue of share passed at the extraordinary general meeting of TRZARRARREIIAE LBBAE
the Company held on 31 December 2013, 535,868,205 bonus METARzEBRER ER_F
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued on 16 January 2014 to —MFE—-A+NAREGRAAFLER
the shareholders on the basis of five bonus shares for every MAIEERRAR . EERNEEZE
existing ordinary share who were entitled to those bonus ZE A% 2 B% B 3£ 17535,868,205 8%
shares. The bonus shares rank pari passu with the existing FHRE(E0.0178 JT Z AL © AT Ax A 17
shares in all respects. RETA 77 EE IR A k) = A R & &
b)  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution in relation to the bonus by BER-Z—RAFNAA+—BHTZ

issue of share passed at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 11 September 2015, 5,787,376,614
bonus shares of HK$0.01 each were issued on 6 October
2015 to the shareholders on the basis of nine bonus shares for
every existing ordinary share who were entitled to those bonus
shares. The bonus shares rank pari passu with the existing
shares in all respects.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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AARBREFRAS BB EMET
AR zEBrAER BER_Z—AHF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

22.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

22. X DT 2 B MRRBRE B

2015 2014
—E-RE —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHTB R R Z/RE 65,285 65,285
Available-for-sale investments AHREERE 49,149 60,253
114,434 125,538
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TAN IR R e KA M E
receivables WK IE 150 276
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NEIE S 59,398 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 5,889 28,285
65,437 28,561
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued liabilities B fth & 5/ IE R E5T B (& 908 1,120
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTHT B A R 38 - 17,678
908 18,798
Net current assets RBEEFEE 64,529 9,763
Total assets less current liabilities REERTEBERS 178,963 135,301
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital & 75 64,304 6,430
Share premium and reserves A& 19 % B R 1 114,659 128,871
Total equity RRESHE 178,963 135,301
Approved and authorised for issued by the Board of directors on 18 March 2016.
RZE—R"E=ZA+N\B KESSHERBIERZE-
Chow Chi Wa Yang Xingan
AEE EREZ
Director Director
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZF

22.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY — CONTINUED

92

22 RDR 2 HBRRERR B

m

Movement in the Company’s reserves ARBzHEEE
Investment Capital
Share Capital  revaluation  redemption Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
REEMR EXRE
ROEE  EARAE wE ®E  REEAN st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TR
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-—NE—-H—H 39,337 24,650 870 11,690 236,706 313,253
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 14,758 14,758
Other comprehensive income  FAH M2 A E
for the year - = (870) - - (870)
Total comprehensive income ERZENGEE
for the year - - (870) - 14,758 13,888
Share issued upon bonus issue  EATALRR B E TR M (5,358) = = = = (5,358)
Dividends (Note 72) B (Hiti12) - - - - (192912)  (192,912)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE-—ME+TZA=+—HR
1 January 2015 “Z-R§—A—H 33,979 24,650 = 11,690 58,552 128,871
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 43,662 43,662
Total comprehensive income  FAZEMELEHE
for the year - - - - 43,662 43,662
Share issued upon bonus issue  ETALIRE B #1TRR (33,979) (23,895) = = = (57,874)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-AF+-A=+—H - 755 - 11,690 102,214 114,659

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$2,277,000 (2014:
HK$2,277,000) and in Hong Kong of HK$232,934,000
(2014: HK$211,840,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. No deferred tax asset has been recognised at
the end of reporting dates in respect of the tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
arising in the PRC will expire from 2015 to 2019 (2016:
HK$164,000; 2017: HK$27,000; 2018: HK$1,638,000;
2019: HK$448,000) while those arising in Hong Kong will
carry forward indefinitely.

.ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

23. EER 1B

RBEHR ZEERFREED
DRIEEARS B IEEE2,277,000
B (ZZE—MF:2,277,0008 7T)

232,934,000 L (=& — /0 & :

211,840,000/ 7T ) * Itk AT A3 A 4K 85 6%
BREBEEBZARZAKEZRB G
FlerERPMLEER BRELTE
A 2R F RO - B U I B SRR B S
BRERAEEMRBEE-AREEA M
HEBEH_-_TE—RAFE_ZT—NF
BIHI (== —/NF:164,0008 7T —

T—+F:27,00087L: —F—)\F:

1,638,000/ 7T : —Z — JL4F : 448,000
BIL) MBBELAZRABBEEER

HR 4585 o
24. E{TER R

REZZAMNBREHRAZIZE

MERRZREDTT :

2015 2014

—ZE-1F —T-F

HK$7000 HK$000

FET FET

Within 90 days 90H 2,569 3,855
91-120 days 91-120H 593 242
121-180 days 121-180H 14 19
Over 180 days HiE180H 191 166
3,367 4,282

The credit period on purchase is generally 1.5 to 3 months.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time
frame.

BEZEEH-—RB/ISE3MEA - KE
E RIS E b B IR BUR AR E

ENRAERNEERRAA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BiZ —FE—hE+ - H=—+—HIFZF

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. B TAREAXAERER
RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) I T EMEH
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—uF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Financial assets CREE
Loans and receivables (including B e R IE
bank balances and cash) (BHERTEHRRRS) 158,330 208,403
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 49,149 60,253
Financial assets at fair value FRBmRRATEIEZ
through profit or loss TRIBE 87,812 -
Financial liabilities cRAE
Liabilities measured at REHEKNAFTEZERE
amortised cost 20,658 12,506
The Group’s major financial instruments include AEEZFEMBITAGFEAHLEE
available-for-sale investments, accounts receivable, & EUERR B ER IR - F iR
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through BRiRBRATEIEZEREE RI1T
profit or loss bank balances and cash, accounts i eR NIR & - AN BR SRR H A FE A R
payable and other payables. Details of these financial BeZEMBTAZFBRMEMME
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. hiREE - ERZ SIS T AR 2 Ak
The risks associated with these financial instruments AFORE ZERR 2 BERES T -
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are EREHZERARETERENMESR
set out below. Management manages and monitors BRARBRBERZ T ABTESE
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are i

94

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%

STATEMENTS
EJJ TF IR R EE

—hFEFZH=F—HIFE

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 2. B TEAREXRRARERE &

RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies
Management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Group through their
degree of magnitude of risks. These risks include market
risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.
There has been no change to the Group’s manner
in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business transaction, assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$, US$, SGD and
RMB and the functional currencies of the Group’s
principal operating entities are HK$, SGD and
RMB. Considering the fact that most of the groups
transactions are denominated in its functional
currency except for sales denominated in US$, the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises
from sales denominated in USS$.

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, there is no significant
exposure expected on US$ transactions and
balances whilst the currency peg remains in place.

BEEABEEZREREE

ERERBRERNEREREEE
MEBREAEELEMRBNYTG
Rk -ZERBRBETSRR (&
5 SN L B~ A =X [ B K AR (B R
) 1:',%}—\,? /m@JﬁiHM

(i) TG ERR
AEBEZRETHETEME
SN TE R - R N BRAE R B
) MERAR AEEER

Mt EBRRER 27731 &
B o

SN B | B

AEBEBRS BERBE
AV TT ~ £70  F s T & A
REFHE mMASEEE=E
BRI ES RBT 3N
BITRARE - ZEIIREE
RETFEIN REHEER
SR EREHE  A&5E
P A 2 SN BB 2R B 32 7T
HEHE -

R EXITTANE - MR
EEAARRNERZE %
TRGREHRTEEKER
[ B o
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

96

RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — Continued
(i) Market risk — Continued

Foreign currency risk — Continued

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to a 5% (2014: 5%)
increase and decrease in Hong Kong dollars
against Renminbi and Singapore dollars. 5% is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding amounts of PRC subsidiaries
and Singapore subsidiary’s Hong Kong dollars
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. For a 5% strengthening
of Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi and
Singapore dollars, the post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015 would be decreased by
HK$86,926 (2014: post-tax profit decreased by
HK$4,620,000). For a 5% weakening of the Hong
Kong dollars against Renminbi and Singapore
dollars, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit or loss.

The Group’s sensitivity to Hong Kong dollars
against Renminbi and Singapore has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the
decrease in carrying amount of PRC subsidiaries
and Singapore subsidiaries” Hong Kong dollars
denominated monetary net assets.

[nterest rate risk

As at 31 December 2014, The Group’s fair value
interest rate risk relates primarily to interest rate
of short-term bank deposits which carry interest
ranging from 0.11% to 0.38% per annum.
Management monitors interest rate exposures and
will consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities with a floating
interest rate as at 31 December 2015.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
TEERKBERERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS RAR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl —E— A F+ - H="+—HIFZE

5. B TAREREARERE -&

b) BHEEAREEZRERBER

|

(i)

5 R g — &
SNE R — B
NTHEESMERBILE
AR R % T E xR+
F BT F#5% (ZZE—PUF:
5% ) )RR EAEEEE T © 5%
BREEEZBHRRAIDI
ERERBERERZHEEL
K WHRKEIEELINEE R
A IR O] RE ) 2 BT 1h o SRR
EaiTeiEd BB AR R
0 B B A Bl A B T EH A
BEEBEZAFEESRE KR
HA 4R L OINES [ R 500 ) 2 B 3
THEAZR -MBTHAR
K& X 7 D4 T £ R5% - Al
E- T —HF+_A=1+—
B IFF & 2 T 1% w7 g R
86,9268 7L (Z T — W% :
T 1& % 7R 2 4,620,0007%
JC) o 0BT H AR K F N
WL T ES% ¥ B IR
EREERTE-

REE - BT B E QR R
OB B R RIAB TTEHE
SR FEEZREERD &K
SEZBTHBARE R
AN 7T B R B PR >

B = 2 b2
RZE—NFF+ZA=+—
H AEEAFEZFER
SEFBRTEPRTIERZ
ME FFENF011%E
0.38% B EERFER
R -MBFE BEREHE
A F = @ B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL B.METAREREREE &

RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEEREEsREREEK
policies — Continued — &

(ii) Credit risk (ii) 15 E /& &

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
management considers that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds including bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group is exposed to some concentration of
credit risk. The five largest debtors accounted for
approximately 28% (2014: 25%) of the Group’s
total accounts receivable. In order to minimise the
credit risk, management continuously monitors the
level of exposure to ensure that follow-up actions
and/or corrective actions are taken promptly to
lower exposure or recover the overdue debts.

Other than concentration of credit risk described
above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

R—ZE—RAF+=-_A=1+—
B AEBRAYFH KL
TEAMSEAEBRBREYH
BRAERENRSRAR  TE
£ EHEREA BRI RE
MEEHREREENREA
=

ABEERBRRERE &1
BRHEHRSFETRME
A FE U R X 2 AT Y [B] & %8
A B4R 34 1 AT i [B] & B8 AT A
H 2 BERE D R 5 - BLitm
5 BEEERRAKEZEER
B 2 K i B A o

HRYFTERERRES
AREBEFSREEFRZ
RITREREE SRBES
(BREBITER) 2EERR
BR-

AEBAIEEEZEES
RS - A RER A Lh AN E
B 48 e W BR 5K 4928% (=&
—PUF:25%) - BT EEMR
REERK BEEHEZR
RBRFEE - LARELR I BDELERER
BT RIS E1TE) R R
R kB BEEIE-

B EXFiz&FEERR
Sh REEW EEMBB AR
EERR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl —E— A F+ - H="+—HIFZE

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 2. B TEREXAERBEE-&
RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEABERE 2REREE
policies — Continued — &
(iii) Liquidity risk (iii) 7t B & & & &

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate bank balances and cash and continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

The following table analyses the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity
risk. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

ExgnndEsERER
EERKREE REELAEHE
ZREH - PHERHES IR
HELEEF R DEY—E
RBEZRBETAREEE
R NEE BRI RIRITHER
KIRE - AR AN B 52 TR0A Ko
ERIReR NEBERDES
[ B o

TROMAKHERAEEZEE
ABRARBE2HBUNEE R E
cRBRzEBEBEERBRELD
BB « WA RTIRAKE
AR EBRNRZ &K B HIF
EeRmBEIRUMRASR
EMFH -emMEEFHA
DIEBEESNBHREE -

Total Total
Within undiscounted carrying
90 days cash flows amount
RBERS
90H A TEBRE FRE A5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
2015 —T—hF
Accounts payable &1 AR K 3,367 3,367 3,367
Other payables and H At j& 1~ 518
accrued liabilities KIERTEaE 17,291 17,291 17,291
20,658 20,658 20,658
2014 —T—WEF
Accounts payable JEASFBR R 4,282 4,282 4,282
Other payables and H th j& 1~ 518
accrued liabilities KIEETEE 8,224 8,224 8,224
12,506 12,506 12,506

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B2 —E—AF +_H=1—HIFF

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 2. B TEAREXRRARERE &

RISK MANAGEMENT — CONTINUED
(c) Fair value of financial instruments

(c0 MBITARAZQAFE

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

Except that the private equity funds are stated at cost
less impairment as detailed in Note 17, management
considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirely, the fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 Fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 Fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2014, no financial assets and
liabilities at fair values,

HitemEEREBABZAF
ENREMSEBRAZEER
N UNREREWNBEFTE-

BR FL S BN B 2 TH 4R AR A BB (B
SRR (FBRME17) 25 &1
BRANGEEMBRMRCER LT
MEENEMABZRMERE
NFERE -

ERHHERBATEBEE
BAABE  ATFESRTAUT
U

F—& RFEFEDNBEIERNE
EXBERERTST
g (RARB)ERSE
tljo

F-M RFEAETIRE &
FANmEN BEE
FAEAER (AER)
SfEE (BERITLE) B
RHABESH-

F=M RFEAETIALIE
RIEA B RS EE
(BXERBABE) D

BEEXREN[BELA
Fie
RAFESE2EE

R_E—N&EF+_A=+—H"
WEERAFEIEZEREER
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 Bl —E— A F+ - H="+—HIFZE

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL

100

RISK MANAGEMENT — CONTINUED
(c) Fair value of financial instruments — Continued

Assets measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2015

it

Description

FBBRRRATE
SHEZ BB E
—RAKE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Equity investments

25. Eji%lﬂﬁﬁz'gaﬁﬁ%fi_ng
(c MBIAZAFE—&
BN FEGEZEE

R=-B-—HEF+=HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using:

AFEFE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—#& EI& E=R
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET
87,812 - _

All of the Group’s fair value measurement were
revalued at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers
into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

(d) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders. As the
Group is in a cash-rich position, the directors do not
intend to rely on external financing. The Group had no
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
the prior years.

Accordingly, the capital structure of the Group consists
only of equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors review the capital structure of the Group
on a timely basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
TEERKBERERAT
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
Share options granted to employees and other eligible
persons after 7 November 2002 (“2002 Scheme”) and vested
on or after 1 January 2005.

For the 2002 scheme, the maximum number of shares which
can be granted must not exceed 10% of the issued share of
the Company at the date of approval of such scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable as share options to
each eligible participant shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. Any further
grant of options in excess of this 1% limit must be subject
to shareholders’ approval with that participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive,
management shareholder or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options of the 2002 scheme
must be accepted with 7 days from the date of the offer
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors. There is no general
requirement on the minimum period for which option must
be held before an option can be exercised. All option shares
must be exercised within 10 years from the date of grant of
options.

26 LR RERZRZ

RKRAFZBRAEEBRET S
BRER-_ZFT_F+-ALtHRER
TEEMEMEERAL ([ZTZTZ
FirEl) MBEREER_TTLF
—A—BRZKRERE-

R _FHEME IR TFZES
BHEE TEBEAR TR EZT
BRHZEETRMDIO%N RTFEA
BR2HEEZEREMAT FRITZR
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BITRAZ21% - HHEABRLLT1%E
ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬂxﬁé WIEEVS R 3R 2 #EE -
EH2BEEREHBEAL AR L NE

?XZK

RSB IENTEESEMER 7
AAARARIZEE EETHAE &
BRERRNEERRNIES 2 F M

AL THERE IbIN EER+=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z =&

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
— CONTINUED

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
- Continued

The exercise price of the 2002 scheme share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the share options; and (iii)
the nominal value of the share.

The share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
option was granted and exercised.

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its offices under non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements with lease terms ranging from
one to five years. As at 31 December 2015, the total future
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating

26.

27.

—AFFZH=1—HIFE
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leases are payable as follows: ZARRKEHSEANT :
2015 2014
—2—hHF —F-OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —F N 1,740 1,744
In the second to the fifth year inclusive ~ S _FEZFRF (BEEEME) 1,623 2,950
3,363 4,694
COMMITMENTS 28. 7%
2015 2014
—B—AF —F-OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Commitment in respect of investment KRERLERAEE 2 A&
in private equity funds (Note 17) (Kiat17) 19,661 23,620
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Retirement benefits are paid by an overseas and Hong
Kong subsidiary to its employees who contribute to certain
retirement benefits plans managed by relevant government
authorities. The retirement benefits paid by the overseas and
Hong Kong subsidiary are based on a certain percentage of
its employees’ basic salaries in accordance with the relevant
regulations and are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
The subsidiary discharges its retirement obligations upon
payment of the retirement benefits to its employees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following transactions with
related parties:
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Rental expenses
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30,EAEALRS
AEBERBEATETHRS:

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mE
HK$7000 HK$'000
FET FEL

- 480

Rental expenses were payable to a company significant
influence by a close member of controlling shareholder, Mr.
Chen Ying Zhen.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management consisting of directors
and two employees (2014: directors and two employees)
during the year was as follows:

2 HA4E 7

Short-term benefits

HE XXM F—RZEBRERRRE
BEEZERARBREEATENLZ

AR

TEEBABZHE

FR IZEEE (BREEKMERE
B(ZZ—WHE E=ZXMEEER))
ZBEmT

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mE
HK$7000 HK$'000
FHET FET
4,041 4,730

The remuneration of key management is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

TEEHEBZME D EFMEZEER
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31. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in elsewhere to these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had following events after
the reporting period:

On 30 December 2015, the Company proposed to effect the
capital reduction of issued shares and unissued share which
will become effective on 9 May 2016 being approved by
the shareholders of the Company. The capital reduction of
issued shares and sub-division of unissued shares involved
the following:

(a)

(c)

The paid-up capital of each of issued shares be
reduced from HK$0.01 to HK$0.0005 per issued
share by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent
of HK$0.0095 per issued share by way of a reduction
of capital, so as to form new shares with par value of
HK$0.0005 each;

The credit arising from the capital reduction will be
transferred to a distributable reserve as at the effective
date of the capital reduction in accordance with the
applicable laws and the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company and as the board of
directors considers appropriate; and

Immediately following the capital reduction, each of
the authorised but unissued shares with par value of
HK$0.01 each be subdivided into twenty unissued new
shares with par value of HK$0.0005 each, and such
new shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with
each other and have rights and privilages and be subject
to the restrictions contained in the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company.

32. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016.
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(b) AR HIRE & 2 # BR 58 70 A 2
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BILZEEBRETRDE D IF
= T R SRR EE0.00058 7T 2
REITHIG  ZEFHRO B2
MESHFTEYZERSEZ - FR
ZEARRRIEBERRNARAR
Pl < HE R R st - WA BEHFR
B2 IR B FTARBR o

32. it B R

HBEBRRENR_FT—R"EF=A+N\HRH
EEEa/EMRETE-



Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
PEERRRIERBIR LS



	封面
	香港聯合交易所有限公司（「聯交所」）創業板（「創業板」）之特色
	目錄
	公司資料
	董事報告書
	財務摘要
	董事會及高級管理層成員
	管理層討論及分析
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況報表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	封底

